
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Sharon Keenlyside 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

4 September 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL to be held on Tuesday 15 September 2020 at 7.30 pm in the 
. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2020 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which lists the actions from the last Panel meeting and their current status. 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 13  
 

6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Public Document Pack



 
 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 

pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   RENT SETTING POLICY (Pages 7 - 24) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) which recommends 
the adoption of the new Rent Setting Policy set out in Appendix A. 
 

9.   AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 25 - 32) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) providing an update 
on the Councils Affordable Housing Programme (AHP). Updates are provided 
twice a year. 
 

10.   UPDATE ON NOW HOUSING LIMITED (Pages 33 - 40) 
 

 Report and presentation from the Shareholders Group, Now Housing Limited, 
providing an update on the Council-owned housing company. 
 

11.   PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR HOUSING PERIOD QUARTER ONE - 2020/21 
(Pages 41 - 44) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) providing a summary 
of the strategic key performance indicators (KPIs), and comments about 
performance by exception for Quarter One 2020/21. The KPIs are monitored 
monthly by Heads of Service. 
 

12.   WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 (Pages 45 - 46) 
 

 The pro-forma which sets out the Panel’s work programme has been updated 
since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place.  
 

13.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

14.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 15 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraph 4 (consultations or negotiations relating to 
labour relations) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  



 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

PART II 
 

15.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman) 

J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
E.Boulton 
M.Cook 
A.Dennis 
 

M.Holloway 
T.Jackson-Mynott 
R.Lass 
H.Quenet 
F.Thomson 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
 
C.Andrews 
 
Independent Representatives 
 
R.Paris   

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Sharon 
Keenlyside, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
 
 

Part I 
Main author: S.Keenlyside 
Executive Member:  
Not Specific Ward  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this 
report lists the actions from the meeting on 14 July 2020, those responsible 
for completing each action and its current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting 
of this Committee on 14 July 2020. 

Minute Action Responsible Status/ 
Date Completed 

 
43 

Housing and 
Communities 
Update. 
 

11. Members 
enquired about 
resident 
engagement on 
social media and 
asked for a 
breakdown of the 
reach of social 
media posts. 

12.  

Head of 
Service 
Community 
and Housing 
Strategy. 
 

The information was emailed to 
Members on 3 September 2020. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Item 8



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Sian Chambers 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the council’s Affordable 
Housing Programme (AHP).  Updates are provided to this committee twice 
annually 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members to note the content of this report 

3 Explanation 

3.1 On 4th December 2012, Cabinet agreed a range of methods to deliver the 
council’s Affordable Housing Programme (AHP) and that a monitoring report 
should be presented to this committee, setting out the budget and progress in 
delivering new affordable homes.  An overview of progress to date is attached at 
Appendix A and Appendix B. 

3.2 The AHP is managed via an officer project group which meets six weekly and 
overseen by a Steering Group, which meets quarterly.  The Executive Member 
for Housing and Community is a member of the Steering Group, which provides 
strategic direction, considers the budget and recommends any reallocation of 
funds between different delivery methods as required. 

3.3 A Delivery Strategy was agreed by members in 2019. 

Implications 

Legal Implication(s) 

3.4 The council has signed an agreement with the government to deliver the AHP 
using available Right to Buy receipts, in accordance with the rules in the 
agreement. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 The budget for the programme is monitored through the normal budgetary control 
reports.  The current budget for the programme in this financial year is 
£21,510,240.00 

5 Risk Management Implications 

5.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



- 2 - 

5.2 There are no direct risks arising from this report, however the AHP has a risk 
management strategy in place which includes a Strategic Risk Register and an 
operational risk register associated with every project.  The Steering Group and 
Project Group monitor the risk registers and associated controls and mitigation 
plans. 

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 There is a member Procurement Board in place to oversee any procurement 
activity associated with the AHP. 

7.2 There are not procurement implications arising from this report. 

 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 The delivery of new affordable homes provides mechanisms for a range of 
products and initiatives that help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel 
poverty.  New homes are built to high standards that help address climate 
change concerns, including CO2, water and waste reduction; use of local labour 
and transport and modern methods of construction all consider the green 
footprint. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 The provision of good quality affordable homes has a positive impact on health 
and well-being. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There is a communication strategy linked to the AHP 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Our 
Housing and specifically to the achievement of providing more affordable homes 
and is linked to a statutory requirement, under the Homeless Reduction Act  

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
 

 

Page 26



- 3 - 

 
 
Name of author Sian Chambers 
Title Head of Community and Housing Strategy 
Date 28 August 2020 
 
 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Cabinet report 4th December 2012 

Cabinet report 14th June 2016 – Strategic review of Affordable Housing Programme 

 

Appendices to be listed  

Appendix A Affordable Housing Programme Overview 

Appendix B Affordable Housing Programme Monitoring 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Appendix A 
Affordable Housing Programme 

PROJECT UPDATE 
 

Council Newbuild 

The Commons & Ludwick Way 

Planning approval subject to Section 106 Agreement to reinstate and maintain the area of 

hedgerow immediately behind the site in draft. Currently evaluating tenders, with a view to start 

on site in 2021.  

Haseldine Meadows (Spring Glen), Hazel Grove & Lockley Crescent 
Hazel Grove and Haseldine Meadows were submitted for planning in June. Lockley Crescent 
required a re-design due to a neighbour’s right of access and will need a revised pre-application 
meeting before be submitted for planning in the Autumn. 
 
New Park Road 
Current plans show 4 x 2 bed houses.  Off Site Manufacturers are currently being considered 
with a report to be taken to Cabinet for delegated authority to proceed with an OSM contractor 
to build the houses with a separate contractor for demolition, removal of asbestos, ground 
works and landscaping. 
 
Ludwick Green 
Gathering all information in order to apply for planning permission. There has been a delay to 
procuring all the necessary surveys required due to Covid outbreak. Block is now nearly fully 
decanted. 
 
Minster Close 
Contract with RG Carter in place, hoardings around site erected with actual start on site 1st 
September.  Decommissioning of existing buildings in process. Newsletter to local residents 
dispatched. 
 
Burfield Close 
Gathering all information in order to apply for planning permission. Pre-planning resident 
consultation finished at the end of August. Two secure tenants left to decant and discussions 
with the Garage Officer regarding the 2 garage tenants left to decant. Homes England have 
confirmed they would like to see our plans to approve when they are available as they have a 
restrictive covenant. Site is currently being used as temporary accommodation. 
 
Howlands House  
Planning submission consultation period ended and officers currently considering objections. 
New external lighting and ventilation scheme submitted. Planning Committee date to be 
advised.  
 
Queensway House 
The team are currently focussing on the decant of the residential and commercial occupiers.  
The next stage will be to engage architects to start working on design concepts. 
 
 

Open Market Purchase 

9 properties completed this financial year, 20+ properties in the pipeline by end of financial 
year.  
 

New Business 

Chequersfield  
Block for the Council (18 properties) is nearly complete and block for Now Housing to follow in 
September.  Finalising financial viability for sale to Now Housing prior to Council Shareholder 
Group and Now Housing Board. 

Page 29



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

2 
 

 
Swallowfields 
Scheme identified as potential purchase for Now Housing with contractor on site. 20 flats 
including newbuild and refurbishment opposite Inspira House.  Expected completion in 
March/April 2021. 

 
Inspira House 
Contractor working with council on design and submission of planning approval for 3 ground 
floor units (3 larger units rather than 4 smaller units). 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



Classification: Unrestricted

Cherry Way 4 Open Market Purchase Council direct purchases 
9

Elizabeth Close 3

Sir Frederick Osborn 5
Total 9

Open Market Purchase 168

RP Open Market Purchase 4

Phase 1 17

RP Open Market Purchase 1

Council newbuild 7

Council newbuild 22

Phase 2 21

Council purchase Inspira House 54

Council newbuild 16

Council newbuild 7

329

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Open Market Purchase 26 30 15 15 15 15

Chequersfield

12 x 1 bed flats

18 x 2 bed flats

30

The Commons

4 x 2 bed houses

4

Ludwick Way

6 x 3 bed houses

6

Minster House 

90 flats, mix of 1 and 2 bed 

flats

90

Howlands House

72 units- shared units, 

bedsitting room hubs and 

disabled flats. 

Planning application submitted 72

Burfield Close

44 flats, 1 and 2 bed self 

contained and bedsitting 

room hubs

43

Ludwick Green 

14 one bed flats

14

Haseldine Meadows

6 x 2 bed houses, 1 x 3 bed 

house

7

Hazel Grove

2 two bed houses

2

Lockley Crescent

4 x 2 bed houses, 1 x 1 bed 

bungalow

5

High View On track 15

Inspira House

3 x 1BFs

On track 3

Swallowfield

20 homes (mix of studio 

flats and 1BFs)

On track 20

New Park Street

4 x 2 bed houses

4

Birchwood House 8

Haymeads

12 flats 

12

Link Drive / 1-9 Town Centre 38

Homestead Court 9

Welwyn Garden City 

bungalow site (A)

40

Howlands site 30

Queensway House Initial feasibility underway Further work required 30

56 153 162 97 55 75

Completed units 338
Delivery Target 598

Total 936

Funding to Home Group Funding Agreement complete. 

S106 Agreement with Legal

Appendix B - Affordable Housing Programme Funded Delivery 

On track

On track

On track but potential delay 

assoc with Covid 19

Funding to WGCHA and B3 Living

On track but potential delay 

assoc with Covid 19

Purchase units from Taylor Wimpey

Funding to Paradigm

Identification of low demand existing 

council sheltered stock and 

redevelopment

Funding to WGCHA

Agreed to purchase 30 units, 18 for 

HRA and 12 for Now Housing 

Limited - site reopened after 

A mix of 2, 3 or 4 bed houses/flats for the 

council

Funding to WGCHA

On track

Total

Purchase of S106 obligation on council 

redevelopment

Council site, potential infill

Initial plans devised - 38 properties 

Initial feasibility underway

Further work required

Currently moving residents out of block, 

with a view to demolition and 

redevelopment

Completion of Units 2020/21

On track but slight delay 

caused by Covid 19

On track

Completed Units from September 2012 - 30 June 2020

Total  

New property purchases started 

after Covid restrictions eased

Projects in progress and description

Furzen Crescent

Funding to Paradigm

Procurement of construction 

partner in progress

Phase 3 site

Funding to Hightown

On track 

Garden Avenue

Funding to WGCHA

Procurement of construction 

partner in progress

Phase 3 site

Better use of existing site for Temporary 

accommodation

Programme and delivery targets

Purchase of 2,3 & 4 bed homes for the 

council

Planning received and waiting for a 

start on site which has been 

delayed due to Covid

Northdown Road

Little Mead

Existing flats with subsidance issues Decants on going, planning 

application in preparation

Existing sheltered scheme to be 

decanted and new temporary 

accommodation to be built

Decants on going with two 

remaining.  Buildings currently 

being used as temporary 

accommodation. Planning 

application in preparation

Further work required

Phase 3 site

Revised pre-application meeting 

required due to design changes.

On track

On track

Phase 3 site

Phase 3 site

On trackPlanning application submitted 

Planning application submitted 

Conversion of unused space at Inspira 

House block

Design work underway; planning 

application being prepared

Further work required

Council owned site  - has potential to 

redevelop and deliver more than 30 

additional homes

Initial feasibility underway

Further work required

Further work required

Further work required

Further work requiredDirect council development on 

HRA/general fund land

Delivers new garages as well as 

new flats

Block is part office conversion and 

part new build

Purchase units from private developer 

(proposed to sell to Now Housing 

Limited)
GF garage site and HRA site Initial feasibility underway

Council owned site, has potential for 

redevelopment and to deliver more than 

twenty additional homes

Initial feasibility underway

Existing Home Group accommodation Initial feasibility underway

03/09/20Classification: Unrestricted

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 1 - 

 

Part 1 
Main author: Ka Ng, Stuart Pearson 
Executive Members: Cllr Nick Pace, 
Cllr Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 15 SEPTEMBER 2020  
REPORT OF SHAREHOLDER GROUP 
 
NOW HOUSING – PROGRESS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides an update on Now Housing Limited. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Cabinet Housing Panel notes the report of the Chair of Now Housing 
Limited (shown in Appendix A), which presents an update on the company’s 
progress to date. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January 2019 the Cabinet of Welwyn Hatfield Council approved the creation of 
Now Housing Limited, a new wholly council-owned housing company to provide 
housing for local people whose needs cannot be easily met through the private or 
social rented sectors.   

3.2 Cabinet appointed a shareholder representative group to oversee the set-up of 
the Now Housing, on behalf of the council.  Members of the shareholder group 
consist of the Council’s Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer, Corporate 
Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) and Monitoring Officer. 

3.3 The business plan for Now Housing Limited was approved in October2019 and 
as part of the shareholder monitoring arrangements, regular updates on Now 
Housing’s performance against the business plan are required to be presented to 
Cabinet Housing Panel. 

3.4 The first proposed housing scheme for Now Housing Limited will be available for 
let in October 2020 and the loan agreement between the council and Now 
Housing is in the process of being finalised, prior to the handover of this first 
development to Now Housing. 

3.5 Whilst Now Housing has therefore not yet started trading, the required progress 
has been made in preparing the company for operating. 

 
3.6 A meeting between the Chair and Vice-Chair of Now Housing Limited and the 

Shareholder Group took place on 4 September.  An update report on the 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 2 - 

 

progress of Now Housing was presented to the shareholder group.  This update 
report is contained within the attached report. 
 

Implications 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 Now Housing Limited is a legally constituted company and robust governance 
arrangements are in place, as agreed with the shareholder group and based on 
expert legal advice provided to both Now Housing and the shareholder group. 

5. Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 A loan agreement is being agreed between the council and Now Housing, with a 
loan facility established to enable Now Housing to acquire and develop 
affordable homes. 

6. Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Now Housing has developed a comprehensive risk map, covering both strategic 
and operational risks.   

7.1 Communication 

7.1 A communications plan has been devised, to ensure that the council promotes its 
achievement in creating the Housing Company.  The communications plan will 
be launched when the first properties have been let. 

 
8.1 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no security or terrorism implications arising from this report. 

9. Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

10. Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 The proposals in this report will not impact on greenhouse gas emissions. 

11. Human Resources Implication(s) 

11.1 There are none. 

12. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

12.1 There are none.  

13. Link to Corporate Priorities 

Page 34



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 

 

Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
- 3 - 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities 
‘‘Our Housing’ specifically to Housing Need and Affordable Homes. 

 

14. Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies 

 
Name of author: Ka Ng 
Title: Corporate Director  
Date: September 2020 
 

Attached documents: Now Housing Performance Update, report of the Chair, Now 
Housing Limited 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

- 1 - 

 
NOW HOUSING/SHAREHOLDER GROUP MEETING 4 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHAIR, NOW HOUSING LIMITED 
 

NOW HOUSING PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In January 2019 the Cabinet of Welwyn Hatfield Council approved the creation of a 
new wholly council-owned housing company to provide housing for local people 
whose needs cannot be easily met through the private or social rented sectors.  The 
business plan for Now Housing Limited was approved in October2019 and as part of 
the shareholder monitoring arrangements, regular updates on Now Housing’s 
performance against the business plan are required to be presented to Cabinet 
Housing Panel. 

1.2 The Board of Now Housing Limited and the council’s Shareholder Group are in the 
final stages of agreeing the loan agreement, which forms the basis for the funding 
provision to the development and acquisition of homes through Now Housing. 

1.3 Subject to approval of the transfer of a block at Chequersfield, the first Now Housing 
homes will be available to let from October 2020.  

1.4 Now Housing has not yet started trading.  Trading will commence upon final 
agreement of the loan arrangement and the handover of the company’s first 
properties to let, in September/October 2020. 

1.5 This report provides an update on Now Housing Activities to date. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 To note the progress made so far in the set up and operation of Now Housing 
Limited. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January 2019 Cabinet Members approved the establishment of a local housing 
company (Now Housing Limited) which is wholly owned by the council and limited by 
shares. 

3.2 Cabinet Members delegated authority to the Corporate Director, (Housing and 
Communities) and Corporate Director, (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) in 

Page 37



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 2 - 

consultation with the Monitoring Officer, Executive Member, Housing and Communities 
and the Executive Member, Resources, to finalise all the necessary legal documentation 
including the Shareholder Agreement and Articles of Association as required to establish 
Now Housing and put in place appropriate governance arrangements. 

3.3 Cabinet approved the objectives of the company, to be incorporated into the business 
plan of the company, as being: 

a) Provide good quality, well managed homes for residents in the borough of 
Welwyn Hatfield which people can afford to live in, and which complement 
the council’s existing and planned housing provision. 

b) Support the growing local demand for a mix of housing tenures by providing 
intermediate, low cost home ownership or open market homes and letting 
sub-market and market rented homes; 

c) Be a financially robust company, generating a profit to be used for the 
purpose of providing more affordable housing and delivering financial returns 
to the shareholder;  

d) Stimulate local housing regeneration and partnership working 

3.4 In October 2019 Cabinet approved the Now Housing business plan 2019-25 and agreed 
that progress reports against the business plan would be provided on a quarterly basis 
to Cabinet Housing Panel.  It is also a requirement that the business is subject to a 
review annually, with a full re-write every five years.  The overall target of the business 
plan is for 372 homes over the life of the plan and at the time of its approval, the 
assumptions of the business plan provided for £77m of finance, required from the 
council. 

3.5 Cabinet has appointed a shareholder representative group to ensure the exercise of the 
council’s rights as shareholder.  At the time of writing  the Chair and vice-chair of the of 
the Board of the Housing Company were due to meet with the shareholder 
representative group on 4 September to formally agree and adopt the Shareholder 
Agreement and Articles of Association and to ratify the governance arrangements, as 
set out in the agreed schedule of delegations;  an update was also to be provided on the 
general progress of the Housing Company since the business plan was first approved in 
October2019. 

3.6 Progress update 

Now Housing has appointed its Board, with Cabinet approval.  Board Members are:
  

 Simone Russell, Chair (council) 

 Sian Chambers, vice-Chair (council) 

 Peter Gray (council) 

 Kerry Clifford (council) 

 Jo Savage (independent) 

 Michael Hadjimichael (independent) 
 

Page 38



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 3 - 

3.7 Regular Board meetings have taken place.  The main areas of activity have been: 

a) Finalise, in consultation with the shareholder group, the shareholder 
agreement and scheme of delegations – in preparation for agreement by the 
Shareholder Group. 

b) Negotiate the loan agreement between the council and the shareholder, to 
include revisions at the end of the first year of the business plan, based on the 
up to date assumptions 

c) Negotiate an overarching Service Level Agreement and associated service 
schedules, in relation to the services which will be provided by the council to 
Now Housing Limited 

d) Put in place all required legal and financial arrangements as required for the 
set-up of the company, including registration with Companies House, bank 
account facilities, appropriate insurance provision, data protection and health 
and safety arrangements. 

e) Exercise due diligence in ensuring that a robust risk map is in place and 
monitored at each Board meeting. 

f) Approve key operational policies, including tenancy management, rent 
setting, lettings.  

g) Consider the proposed acquisition of the first housing scheme for Now 
Housing Limited, at Chequersfield, Welwyn Garden City and explore other 
opportunities for housing delivery.  

h) Agree a communications plan and lettings arrangements for the first housing 
scheme, to coincide with a formal launch of Now Housing Limited during the 
autumn of 2020. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s)  

4.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this progress report.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There is in place an approved business plan and, subject to agreement of both the 
council’s Shareholder Group and Now Housing Limited Board, a mutually agreed loan 
agreement.   

5.2 There are no additional financial implications arising from this progress report. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Now Housing Limited has in place a comprehensive, Board approved risk map.  This 
has been updated considering the Covid pandemic. 

Page 39



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 4 - 

6.2 There are no additional risk implications arising from 

this progress report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications associated to this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated to this report. 
 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications associated to this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report.  Now Housing 
Limited does not directly employ any staff. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1  There are no health and wellbeing implications directly arising from this report. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 A communications plan has been developed to launch Now Housing Limited upon the 
handover of its first housing scheme.  Council Members will be invited to participate in 
the arrangements so that they can promote the council’s positive work in innovating to 
meet local housing need. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The objectives of Now Housing Limited directly reflect the council’s objectives: Our 
Council – Housing Need, Affordable Homes 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed 

because this report does not propose changes to existing 

service-related policies or the development of new service-

related policies. 

 
 
Name of author Simone Russell 
Title Chair, Now Housing Limited 
Date 1 September 2020 
 
 

Page 40



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Main author: Stuart Pearson 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
Wards: All 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 15TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 

 

HOUSING PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER ONE 2020/21 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The attached report provides a summary of the strategic Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs), and comments about performance by exception. The KPIs are 
monitored monthly by Heads of Service. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Panel note the contents of the attached report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The KPIs being reported, as shown in Appendix A, are the corporate KPI’s 
published in the council’s Action Plan for 2020/21.  

3.2 The report shows the results for each KPI and how performance compares 
against target and tolerance.  

3.3 Each KPI has supporting commentary relating to the period end performance, 
with each assessed using a ‘RAG’ status of either as red, amber or green.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 All controls are in place to manage legal implications. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 A robust rent arrears management framework is in place through a specialist 
team responsible for collecting the council’s annual rent charges of circa. £50 
million. 

6 Risk Management Implication(s) 

6.1 No new risks identified. All controls are in place.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The Decent Homes standard for council housing stock and private sector 
housing directly affect climate change and are monitored within these KPIs.     

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Several of the KPIs impact on the wellbeing of housing applicants, Lifeline 
customers and tenants. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Performance information is reviewed by the Tenants Panel and communicated 
with customers through Your Voice newsletter. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 Each of the KPIs is a corporate published KPI and include the corresponding 
reference used for performance clinic reports. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection 
with the proposals that are set out in this report as the recommendation does 
not require a policy or service change. 

 

 
Name of author Stuart Pearson 
Title Head of Housing Operations  
Date 03/09/2020 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 
 

P
age 43



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

P
age 44



Classification: Unrestricted 

CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

DATE OF 
MEETING  

REPORTS  REPORT AUTHORS 
SERVICE AREAS 

10 November 2020  Performance Report for Housing Quarter Two KPIs 2020/21 

 Repairs Performance Report 

 Queensway House Update 

 Development/Housing Company Update – Chequersfield Launch 

 Building Safety White Paper 

 Complaint Policy Update – Housing Ombudsman Complaint 
Handling Code 

 

All 
 
 
 
 
 
Stuart Pearson 
 

12 January 2021  Legal and Regulatory Update 
 

 

2 March 2021  Performance Report for Housing Quarter Three KPIs 2020/21 All 
 

 P
age 45

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 RENT SETTING POLICY
	9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE
	9 - CHP AHP update App A 09 20
	9 - Copy of CHP Appendix B AHP Delivery Monitor

	10 UPDATE ON NOW HOUSING LIMITED
	10 - Appendix A - Shareholder meeting 040920 final - Now Housing Performance Update September 2020

	11 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR HOUSING PERIOD QUARTER ONE - 2020/21
	12 WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

